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City of Lynchburg 
Procurement Division 
900 Church Street 
Lynchburg, Virginia  24504 
Telephone No.: (434) 455-3970 
Fax No.: (434) 845-0711                     
                                                    Addendum for Request for Proposal 

Lynchburg City Schools Special Education Services 
 

2018-019 
 
Date:    10/27/2017 
From: Tomek Kruszec Buyer 
RE: Addendum No.  1 
 
This Addendum supplements and amends the original Plans and Specifications and shall be taken 
into account in preparing proposals and shall become a part of the Contract Documents. The Offeror 
shall indicate receipt of this Addendum and all previously issued Addenda on the Title Page.   
 

1. What is the anticipated date of award? Once the award has been made, how will vendors be notified 
of this decision? 

a. According to the Method of Award section in the RFP, award will be made after interviews 
and negotiations are complete with the selected vendor. This process can take a couple of 
months after interviews are completed. Due to this process, no date of award can be 
provided. 

2. Do you have an estimate of total therapy hours required? That would help us ascertain whether we 
would assign one part or full time therapist, or multiple therapists to provide the requested services. 
If hours for the next school year have not been determined, could you provide us with the total 
therapy hours that were required this school year? 

a.  Although, we cannot project absences, past year absences and needs were as follows: 

i. OT- 12 weeks  7.5 hour days  5 days per week 
ii. Speech Therapy-12 weeks  7.5 hour days  5 days per week 

iii. Psychological evaluations- 30 evaluations/ year 
iv. BCBA- We were unable to fill a fulltime position for a full 180 day work year. 
v. BCaBA-We currently have a fulltime opening we are not able to fill. 

vi. PT - We typically have 10 absences per year. 
vii. RN-Absences 1-2 absences each week - 36 work weeks per year. 

viii. LPN-Personal care assistants- 25 absences per year 
 
What is the anticipated/projected contract budget for the 17/18 SY? 

a. There is no anticipated/projected budget for this project. 

3. What is the number of available positions per discipline?  

a. See response for absences above. 

4. How many positions do you typically contract per discipline? 

a. See response under number 2. 

5. How many schools are typically on a therapist’s caseload? 

a. Speech pathologist often serves 1-2 schools.  OT/PT serves 1-5 schools.  RN/LPN serves 1 
school. BCBA serve 1-4 schools.  BCaBA serve 1 school. 
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6. Is the district interested in bilingual SLP/OT/PTs? If yes, what languages? 

a. Bilingual therapists are not required. However, bilingual therapists would be beneficial 
especially if they speak Spanish. 

7. How many hours are in the standard work week for full time positions 

a. 7.5 hours per day  5 school days per week  36 school weeks and 180 instructional days 11- 
non instructional days 

8. Who are the current vendors providing services? 

a. There are no current vendors for these services. This is the first time LCS has solicited for 
these services. 

9. What are the current billing rates by specialty? 

a. We do not have any contracts with private vendors at this time. 

10. Do you require resumes of potential candidates to be included in our bid submission? 

a. Resumes are not required. However, resumes, as long as they cover all of the requested 
information on page 4 section 2, would be an acceptable format. 

11. Do you provide the equipment and MATERIALS to be used for evaluations and therapy (e.g. speech 
protocols)?  

a. All testing and therapy materials are available through LCS. 

12. Will the therapist have access to a computer, fax, internet access, etc.? 

a. Yes 

13. Are we required to provide a laptop to therapists? 

a. No 

14. Do you require certain forms to be included in the bid? (business license, W-9, etc)? 

a. No.  

15. How many therapists (FTE) did each vendor provide to your District for the current 2016-2017 
school year? 

a. none 

16. How many contract therapists (FTE) do you anticipate needing for the 2017-2018 school year?  

a. SLP? See number 2 above 

b. OT? See number 2 above 

c. PT? See number 2 above 

d. Psychological Evaluation? See number 2 above 

17. Do you require that therapist resumes and/or licensure be submitted with the proposal? 

a. No. 

18. How many hours are in a typical school day (i.e. how many hours are therapists allowed to be on-site 
and billing)? 

a. 7.5 

19. How many work days are they assigned for the school year? 

a. 180 school days with 11 non-school days 

20. What is the average caseload by discipline in your District? 
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a. SLP? 55 

b. OT? 55 

c. PT? 55 

d. Psychological Evaluation? Undetermined   

21. Is the contracting agency able to bill for both direct and indirect treatment time (paperwork, meeting, 
teacher consultations, etc.)? 

a. Yes 

22. Do you require vendors to guarantee the provision of therapy services or is it understood that we will 
begin recruiting on a best efforts basis? 

a. This RFP is intended to secure these services to provide immediate staff to cover absences. 

23. Does your historical use of contract therapists indicate that they typically remain employed 
throughout the school year, or that they are replaced during the school year if the district is able to 
locate a direct hire? 

a. The final agreed upon contract between LCS and the private vendor determines this 
outcome. 

24. Can pricing increase during the 5-year term of the contract?  

a. Pricing can be increased annually during renewal as long as it can be justified through a CPI 
or PPI index. 

25. Our therapists can complete the necessary paperwork for Lynchburg City Schools to bill and receive 
reimbursements from Medicaid, but we do not bill Medicaid directly.  Is this in alignment with your 
expectations? 

a. Yes 

26. Will Lynchburg City Schools accept tele-therapy as an acceptable and qualified option to satisfy the 
service request listed below? 

a. LCS will consider tele-therapy as an option to cover absences. 

27. What are the total weekly work hours for therapists in the district? 

a. 7.5 hours per day 5 days per week 

28. Will the district accept Clinical Fellows under this contract? 

a. We will consider Clinical Fellowship related staff if the vendor provides the required 
supervision. 

29. Does the district provide protocols and assessments for speech and language therapy? 

a. Yes 

30. Does the district except a range to accommodate the experience of our clinicians for the proposed 
bill rate or should the proposed bill rate be one set number? 

a. One set number  

31. Does the estimated quantity reflect monthly or annual estimated quantity? 

a. Annual. 

32. Is it your preference for a company to have an office in the State of Virginia? 

a. Yes 

33. Since the RFP states the services will be as needed, can you please let me know the number of 
weekly hours that the OT, PT, SLP, School Psychologist, RN, LPN, BCBA and BCaBA is projected 
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to work or has worked during the 2016-17 academic year to help in calculating our cost proposal for 
Lynchburg City Schools (LCS)? 

a. See number 2 above 

34. Would you consider certified therapy assistants such as COTA, PTA, SLPA or CFY? 

a. Yes 

35. For what grade levels will the OT, PT, SLP, School Psychologist, RN, LPN, BCBA and BCaBA 
specifically serve and what will be their caseload? 

a. Pre-K through 22 years old. 

36. How many working days will the OT, PT, SLP, School Psychologist, RN, LPN, BCBA and BCaBA 
work during the school year (For Example: 180 days or less)? 

a. See number 2 above.  We have a 180 day school year. 

37. Per pg. 4 regarding the 30-page limit, can you clarify if the page limit excludes the cover page and 
other supplemental materials? 

a. Yes. The page limit of this RFP is 30 pages including supplemental materials and excludes 
the cover page. 

38. Per pg. 4, are there any specific submittal requirements regarding each proposal being bound? For 
example: binding clips, binders, dividers, tabs, etc. 

a. There are no specific requirements for binding. However, the proposal should be bound. In 
the past, we have received proposals bound and in three ring binders. 

39. Are resumes required at the time of proposal submission OR only upon award?  

a. Resumes for proposed therapist will be accepted after award.  

40. Do you require vendors to guarantee the provision of therapy services, or is it understood that 
vendors will begin recruiting on a best efforts basis upon contract award? 

a. LCS would like the vendor to guarantee therapy services. 

41. Can we incur in any penalties or be liable for any damages for not having a 
OT/PT/SLP/RN/LPN/School Psychologists/Board Certified Behavior Analyst/Board Certified 
Behavior Analyst Assistant available upon your school’s request in a timely manner or would your 
school terminate the RFP contract with our company? 

a. LCS understands that the services requested depend heavily on individuals. The offeror 
would not incur any penalizes for not being able to meet the services requested as long as a 
valid reason can be provided. Contract cancellation would be a final resort. 

42. To pay invoices, does the board meet monthly to release payment for the month? Do you remit 
payment only once a month? If so, do you have a calendar or specific time of month the board meets 
to approve payments?  

a. Yes, the LCS Business office has a specific process, payment format, and timeline that can 
be provided upon request. 

43. Will your school provide laptops/computers and/or an email account to the contracted providers 
during their assignment?  

a. We will not provide an email account. We will provide access to a computer to access non-
LCS business email  to complete the contract arrangements. 

44. Who will be the representative from LCS to determine which materials/equipment are required for 
the Therapy Services?  

a. LCS will provide a contract for materials/equipment after contract award.  The Director for 
Exceptional Learner is the contact for service provision.  
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45. Would the district pay for mileage travelling between school campuses on the same day? If so, what 
will be the district IRS Standard Rate? 

a. Travel should be billed monthly. 

46. Besides a Virginia State license, are there any additional Required Documents each healthcare 
provider needs to start working at LCS? For Example: Fingerprint, Criminal Background Check, TB 
Test, or any other specific Certifications or immunizations.  

a. Yes, Fingerprint, Criminal Background Check, TB Test, or any other specific Certifications 
or immunizations currently required to work in a public school.  

47. Will LCS consider a Price Range depending on the candidates’ level of experience OR does LCS 
only want a fixed flat rate? 

a. Fixed flat rate 

48. In regards to billable hours: 1. Are IEP meetings billable?  

a. Yes 

49. Are orientation sessions, professional development and other district-sponsored meetings billable?  

a. Yes 

50. Are we allowed to bill for paperwork and documentation?  

a. Yes 

51. Please provide the # of FTEs (full time equivalents) by vendor? 

a. See response under number 2 above. 

52. How many OT, PT, SLP, BCBA and BCaBA does the district have on staff?  

a. 1- BCaBA, 4 BCBA, PT -1, OT 4, SLP 13 LPN/RN – 1 per school, PCAs 4 

53. How many OT, PT, SLP, BCBA and BCaBA openings does the district anticipate filling with this 
RFP?  

a. See response to number 2 above. 

54. Is the district open to contracting for part-time therapists?  

a. Yes 

55. Who is responsible for purchasing assessment equipment and supplies in order to provide services?  

a. Director for Exceptional Learners LCS 

56. What are the district’s payment terms?  

a. LCS has net 45 payment terms. 

57. Why is the district utilizing a solicitation for the services requested in this bid? 

a. See number 2 above.  Vacancies result in service delivery interruptions. 

58. Can the district please clarify how needs for contractors will be disseminated to vendors post award? 

a. Email and phone call 

59. Can the district please explain how points will be awarded for the price section of this solicitation? 

a. Pricing will be awarded a maximum of 10 points out of 100. Please reference page 5, 
Proposal Evaluation and Award, for the evaluation criteria. 

60. When will the district release its Q&A? 

a. Addenda will be posted on the City’s website periodically throughout the solicitation. A 
final addendum will be posted shortly after the deadline for questions. 
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61. How many vendors does the district expect to award a contract to for the services requested in this 
solicitation? 

a. There is no estimated amount of vendors LCS plans on awarding to.  

62. Can the district please provide the total amount of FTE contract RN, LPN, SLP, OT, PT, School 
Psychologists and BCBA’s utilized during the 2016-17 SY? 

a. See response number 2 above 

63. Can the district please clarify the maximum weekly allowable hours approved for contracted FTE’s? 

a. We do not have maximum allowable hours approved for contracted services.  We have 
challenges willing daily absences as well as long term absences.  When a service provider is 
absent, students do not receive the services they need.  We are interested in having services 
available without interruption to our instructional program. 

64. As part of the evaluation criteria are: ‘Ability to respond to requests to provide services with short 
notice. 20%’ once a need is communicated, what is the expected turnaround time? What would allow 
us to receive the full 20% during evaluation? 
        

a. Responding to a request to fill a temporary vacancy on the same day a staff member calls in 
and our subfinder is not responded to, would be a full 20%. 

b. Responding to a short term or long term expected vacancy by filling the position by the day 
the staff member is expected to be out, would be a score of 20%.  

65. What is the average length of a short-term assignment? 
a. Short term assignments fluctuate between a 1 day absence to 3 weeks absence. 

66. What is the average length for a long-term assignment?  
a. Long term assignments fluctuate between 4 weeks to an entire semester 18 weeks.  We have 

had full year 180 long term absences going unfilled. 
 

 

 

 

 


